
STREETS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
JUNE 2, 2015 

 
The Streets Committee meeting was held on June 2, 2015 at North Royalton City Hall, 14600 State Road. The 
meeting was called to order at 6:33 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Committee Members: Chair Paul Marnecheck, Vice Chair Larry Antoskiewicz, John Nickell; 
Council:  Dan Kasaris, Dan Langshaw, Steve Muller, Gary Petrusky; Administration: Mayor Robert Stefanik, 
Service Director Nick Cinquepalmi, City Engineer Mark Schmitzer, Safety Director Bruce Campbell; Other: 
Louis Krzepina, Cole Nicholas, Allison Higgins, Tim Higgins. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Mr. Nickell, seconded by Mr. Marnecheck to approve the May 5, 2015 minutes. Yeas: 3. Nays: 0. 
Motion carried.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Sprague Road  

Mr. Schmitzer reported that Sprague Road is all paved in concrete from State Road to Broadview Road as 
of yesterday. He said they are currently working on the driveway aprons in Broadview Hts. and Parma and 
will finish up in North Royalton. He said that he expects this project to be complete mid-June which is 
well within the end of July contract provision.  

 
2. Issue 1 Funding 

Mayor Stefanik said that there was a meeting held with DOPWIC and they have finalized some new rules 
and regulations leaning more towards the safety of roads and getting away from basing decisions on what 
a city needs or can afford. He said that this is good news for us because we used to score pretty low on 
need compared to other cities in Cuyahoga County. This evens the playing field a bit. He said that he 
received a revised schedule today for Issue 1. They have changed the application deadline from August to 
September. He said that this year we are going to apply for Tilby Road and Edgerton Road between Ridge 
Road and Bennett Road. He said that these are two of the worst roads we have right now. These are county 
roads and if we don’t get the funding through Issue 1 this round, we will have a better shot at going 
through the Urban Pavement Program with the county which will give us a chance to ask for an 80/20 
split, similar to what we are doing with Bennett Road this year.  

 
3. North Royalton Alternative Transportation Study 

Mr. Marnecheck said that an email was received from Tom Jordan on this matter and is attached to these 
minutes. Mr. Langshaw asked if this study needs to be approved by the Planning Commission before it 
comes to Council. Mr. Kasaris said that this is an advisory study. If we decide to do anything, we would 
rely on this study to guide us in our planning. 
 

4. Service Department Report 
Mr. Cinquepalmi reviewed the report, a copy of which is attached to these minutes. He said that they are 
moving forward with the crack sealing program. He said that our salt contract is up for renewal. The bids 
for the consortium have come in and the legislation to adopt is on Council’s agenda this evening. He said 
that in order to keep the cost down, the consortium opted for 72 hour delivery instead of 24 hours. It will 
take a little more planning to make sure that we always have enough salt on hand but he does not foresee 
any problems with this.  

 
5. Outstanding punch list items 

Mr. Schmitzer said that we will be meeting with Crossroads as soon as the weather warms up, hopefully 
this week. He said that we will set a date for them to come out and get the punch list items completed. Mr. 
Marnecheck asked if we are still within the window of opportunity to notify them of problems. Mr. 
Schmitzer said yes, we are only 9 months into a 2 year warranty. 

 
6. Bennett Road 



Streets Committee June 2, 2015 Page 2 
 

Mayor Stefanik said that Bennett Road will be on the County Council agenda June 9, 2015 on first 
reading. They will take it to a second reading on June 23, 2015 and will approve it at this meeting. A 
preconstruction meeting will then be held with the contractor who is doing the work and they are looking 
at a mid-July start date.  

 
7. 2015 Infrastructure Program 

Mayor Stefanik said that we will talk about two different items this evening. First, the 4 streets that we are 
proposing for this year, and second some additional work we think needs to be done at Cedarwood. He 
said there are dozens of pipes that go under Cedarwood and Applewood and they have a lot of debris in 
them that we were going to clean out and possibly get Lake County Sewer to come out and remove the 
calcium. However we have discovered that there is asbestos in the pipes. He said that we plan to remove 
all these pipes and put in brand new pipes. He said that we are already 95% of the way in to this project 
and have received great results as we found out with this past weekend rain. He said we have $50,000-
$75,000 left over in the contingency and this is estimated to cost about $175,000. We will need to take 
about $100,000 from the $1.2 million we have left for the retention basin because we are projecting that 
the retention basin will come in at about $1 million or less. He said it will be tight but the thinking is we 
are this far into the project and rather than just leave pipes in place and not be able to clean them defeats 
the purpose of the project. He said we will do the asphalt overlay next year or the year after. We want to 
make sure that we get through the warranty period on this project before we pave the roads. Mayor 
Stefanik said that it is our recommendation to remove these pipes. He said that we received an estimate 
from Fabrizi and this will be handled as a change order at the next Council meeting. Mr. Antoskiewicz 
agreed that we need to finish this project right or it will come back to haunt us at some point if we don’t do 
this work. Mr. Nickell asked if these are the pipes that go from catch basin to catch basin. Mr. Schmitzer 
said yes. The roadway system has an inlet basin connected to a catch basin on the other side of the street 
and then this dumps into the new main line sewer. The scope of work is to actually replace the pipe 
underneath the road and then rebuild the catch basin and inlet basins up to the surface and replace the 
concrete roadway curb to curb to a width beyond the joints. Mr. Marnecheck asked why there is asbestos 
in the pipes. Mr. Schmitzer said that the pipes that were used many years ago were permitted to contain 
asbestos. You cannot cut these pipes and must be very cautious. If you cut the pipes you must contact a 
myriad of agencies. As long as we remove them and bag them, which we did when we encountered some 
of these pipes when we were working on the main line sewer, and have them disposed of at a proper 
landfill we are fine.  

 
Mayor Stefanik discussed the 2015 road program. He said that they are suggesting 4 roads: Akins Road 
from Ridge Road to Bennett Road estimated at $147,500, Abbey Road from Albion Road to Sprague Road 
estimated at $424,500, Hawley Drive estimated at $246,500, and Goodman Drive estimated at $247,500, 
for a total of $1,066,000. He said that these estimates are on the high side and he is confident that through 
competitive bidding that this cost should come in under $1 million. He said once we get the prices back it 
will be up to Council to add a street, remove a street, etc. Mr. Kasaris asked if there is a 5th street that the 
Mayor would recommend should there be funds available. Mayor Stefanik said to be honest, he is not sure 
we will be able to add a street. He said that this will dig into our carry over this year. We had a strong 
carry over last year and tax receipts are up. He said he is comfortable saying that we will still be at $1 
million at least. Finance Director Eric Dean agreed. He said our taxes are up $300,000 for the year. We 
still have $320,000 left in our road program from the beginning of the year with the rest coming from the 
General Fund. He said that we ended the year at $1.5 million in the General Fund. This fund would take a 
hit, but we should be at around $1 million at the end of the year. Mayor Stefanik said that Abbey Road will 
need to have the base redone and that is pricey. Akins Road still has a solid base and curbs so this will be a 
quick mill and fill. Mr. Antoskiewicz agreed that these roads are the obvious choice for work this year due 
to their condition.  

 
 

Mayor Stefanik said that Hawley and Goodman Drives will have the asphalt overlay similar to what was 
done on Tiffany Drive, Stephanie Drive, Pamela Drive, etc. He said that the concrete base is still solid on 



Streets Committee June 2, 2015 Page 3 
 

Hawley and Goodman Drives and for us to tear out a good concrete base and then reapply another concrete 
base at a cost of about $800,000 cannot be justified. This will get us years and years of use out of the 
existing base and then maybe 20, 30, 40 years from now if we have to pull out the base, then we will do 
so.  

 
Antoinette D’Ambrosio, Goodman Drive, addressed Council. She asked how much overlay would be put 
down to really make it a solid street. She felt that if 3-4 inches is put down, it will be a problem a year 
later. Mr. Petrusky said that this procedure was done in his ward about 3 years ago. They pulled out some 
of the concrete panels and supported them and put 3 inches of asphalt overlay on the road. He too was 
skeptical of how well it would hold up and over these last two bad winters these roads have held up 
wonderfully. He said that if there were any cracks the Service Departments sealed them and these roads 
are as good today as they were 3 years ago. He recommends this procedure. Mrs. D’Ambrosio said that is 
also the look of the road she is concerned with. This is not a county road anymore and they are right in the 
middle of the city. She said concrete would look much nicer. She asked if the concrete cul-de-sacs will be 
overlaid as well. Mayor Stefanik said that we are keeping the cul-de-sacs as is and the asphalt will come 
right up to the concrete with a perfect seam. Mrs. D’Ambrosio said that the asphalt will be much darker 
and will look tacky. Mayor Stefanik provided pictures of where this process was used elsewhere in the city 
and said that it looks seamless. Mrs. D’Ambrosio said that she understands the cost concerns but said that 
people move to North Royalton for the beauty of the city and schools, etc. but right now where she lives it 
will be patchy. Mr. Antoskiewicz asked how Mrs. D’Ambrosio thinks the streets look now. She said right 
now it’s a mess. Mr. Antoskiewicz said that it will look better than it looks right now once the overlay is 
down. Mr. Antoskiewicz said that even if it was agreed that it all needed to be done in concrete, it would 
not get done this year. It would have to wait and in the mean time you would have to look at what it looks 
like right now.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
No new business. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
Mr. Muller said that he has a resident who is concerned with the intersection at Akins and Edgerton Roads. He 
said that they are asking that we have an LED illuminated Yield sign since we won’t put a stop sign there. Mr. 
Muller asked Council to view the area and keep this item in mind for the next Safety Committee meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Mr. Nickell, seconded by Mr. Antoskiewicz to adjourn the June 2, 2015 meeting. Yeas: 3. Nays: 
0. Motion carried.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:03 p.m.  
 
 



Street Department Monthly Report – May 2015 
 
5/4/15-MON. 
Asphalt-11919 State rd. asphalt strip in front of new driveway. Maple ln. Patch holes with hot mix.  
Crack Seal- asphalt crew laid asphalt for 3hr then came in for crack seal machine. Start at 12883 W130th. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
 
5/5/15-TUES. 
Culvert Pipe-7270 Tilby rd. replace bad pipe. Prep for asphalt [to be installed wed.] 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water- Memorial Park [sent 3 guys up to park to help spread stone for the playground]. 
 
5/6/15-WEDS. 
Asphalt-7270 Tilby rd. put in asphalt apron. Repair a section of road. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 2 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent 2 guys up to help out. [Memorial Park]. 
 
5/7/15-THUR. 
Asphalt-7308 Tilby rd. C.W.D. repair. Dig out water repair and asphalt road. [Half the day]. 
Ditching- same crew the other half of the day. 11119 Donmar rd. ditched and cleaned                        
culvert pipes. [4 properties in a row]. 
Storm Water-sent 2 guys up to help out. [Memorial Park]. 
Rec.Dept.-sent 2 guys down to help out. 
 
5/8/15-FRI. 
Patching-Goodman Dr. Vista dr. [3hr. need same crew for crack seal]. 
Crack Seal-W130th made it up to the Turnpike Bridge. 
Rec. Dept-sent 2 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent 4 guys up to help out. [Memorial Park]. 
Signs-make up high intensity signs. 
 
5/11/15-MON. 
Crack Seal-W130th start right after Turnpike Bridge. 
Mowing-retention basins, Helen and Hunting, Lodge, Apollo, and Jamestown. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent 3 guys up to help out. [Memorial Park]. 
Signs-change old signs with new high intensity. 
 
5/12/15-TUES. 
Joint Repair-Yorkview rd. 
Mowing-retention basins, Sherwood, 
Rec.Dept.-sent 5 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent 3 guys up to help out. [Memorial Park]. 
 
5/13/15-WEDS. 
Joint Repair-Yorkview rd. 
Rec.Dept.-sent 8 down to help out. 
Signs-make up new high intensity signs. 
 
 



5/14/15-THUR. 
Joint Repair-finish Yorkview rd. 
Landscape-6700 Boston [finish final landscape after it settled, topsoil seed and straw]. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Signs-replace old signs with new high intensity signs. 
 
5/15/15-FRI. 
Ditching-15041 Highland rd. also landscaped where a car went off the road. 
Patching-East end Dr. Cedar Wood dr. 
Rec.Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Signs-make up new high intensity signs. 
 
5/18/15-MON. 
Mowing-retention basins, and weed whacking around guardrails throughout the city. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent 2 guys up to help out [Memorial Park]. 
Signs- make up new high intensity signs. 
 
5/19/15-TUES. 
Crack Seal- start at 11645 W130th. 
Mowing-continue cutting retention basins and guardrails. 
Rec.Dept.-sent 2 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent 1 guy up to help out. 
Signs- putting flags up for Memorial Day. 
 
5/20/15-WEDS. 
Crack Seal-start at 11261 W130th. 
Mowing-York rd.and RT82, State rd. Ridge rd. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Signs-trim trees around signs throughout the city. 
 
5/21/15-THUR. 
Memorial Park-prep work on the pathway around the park. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Mowing-mowing and weed whacking throughout the city. 
 
5/22/15-FRI. 
Asphalt-Memorial Park base repair [damage from our trucks during the playground job]. 
Mowing-mowing and weed whacking throughout the city.  
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Signs-fixing traffic lights [per N.R.P.D.] replace old signs with new high intensity signs. 
 
5/26/15-TUE. 
Crack Seal-start at Albion and W130th. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent over 2 guys to help out. 
Signs-took computers from recycle yard downtown for recycling. Worked on signs the rest of the day. 
 
 
 



5/27/15-WEDS. 
Ditching-9949 Gabriella, also 9144, 9165 Albion rd. [half of the day the other half crack sealing]. 
Crack Seal-W130th start at 9493 W130th. 
Joint Repair-start in Cedar Estates. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Signs-fixed flags in center of town.  
 
5/28/15-THUR. 
Culvert Pipe-9267 Wallings replaced bad pipe and install asphalt apron. 
Joint Repair-working in Cedar Estates. 
Rec. Dept.-sent down 3 guys to help out. 
Catch Basin-8779 Parkdale Dr. repair top 5 courses of brick. 
 
5/29/15-FRI. 
Crack Seal-seal all recent C.W.D. repairs. W130th start at 9241 W130th. 
Rec. Dept.-sent 3 guys down to help out. 
Storm Water-sent one guy over to help out. 
Vac Truck-jetting pipes throughout the city. 
Signs-make up new signs [high intensity]. 
 
 
 


	060215 Streets Minutes
	060215 Streets Minutes - EXHIBIT

